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I 
n 1912 with the Passing of the Rural Municipality 

Act, the Province of Alberta created the Department 

of Municipal Affairs. The Act allowed 9 townships to 

apply for incorporation as a rural municipality as 

long as the land contained 1 person/square mile.  Under 

this provision some Local Improvement Districts organized 

as municipalities 

while others chose to 

continue as Local  

Improvement  

Districts.  In 1918, the Government of Alberta require the 

organization of all Local Improvement Districts into  

Municipalities with the Municipal Districts Act. 

     The municipal history of Kneehill County began when 

the Rural Municipality of Roach formed in 1913. In 1919, 

the Rural Municipality of Roach became the Municipal 

District of Ghost Pine. In 1917, Local Improvement  

District No. 279 formed.  

     The Municipal District of Kneehill #278 first became a  

reality on January 1, 1944 when the provincial government 

ordered the dissolution of four smaller districts combining 

them into one larger unit. The four areas were: MD of  

Carbon est. 1912, MD of Norquay (in Acme) est. 1918, 

MD of Ghost Pine (in Trochu) est. 1912, MD of Stauffer 

est. 1918. The administration office moved to Three Hills 

in 1939. In 1945, The Municipal District of Kneehill 

No. 278 renumbered as the MD of Kneehill #48. 

     The Village of Torrington dissolved into the MD of 

Kneehill No. 48 in December 1997. Shortly after, on 

February 4, 1998 the official name changed to Kneehill 

County. 

    Over the years, significant projects have highlighted 

milestone anniversaries. In 1994, over 700 Township 

and Range Road signs were erected on all County roads 

to commemorate 50th. In 2004, signs were installed on 

major entrances into the municipality to commemorate 

the 60th.  For the 70th anniversary, Council announced 

the building of the new Administration Building, and 

for the 75th Council has budgeted to replace the  

highway signage, with a fresh new logo. 

Municipal District of Kneehill #48 forms in 1944 
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2009 brought the Grainger system 

on line with 133km of pipeline and 

servicing to 130 residential proper-

ties with 10 additional properties 

added since the initial installation. 

Current users number 45. 

2010 Selkirk WSA was serviced 

with 153km of pipeline servicing 

168 residential properties initially, 

with 11 subsequently installed since. 

Current users number 75. 

In 2006/07, Kneehill County took 

over the operations of the Mt. 

Vernon Water Co-op and the 

Churchill Water Co-op. With  

increased monitoring requirements, 

and the need for ticketed personnel, 

the management by the  

Co-ops began to be too 

cumbersome. Kneehill 

County is currently rehabili-

tating the Churchill Water 

system in 2019. Mt. Vernon 

has 66km of pipe with 56 

users and Churchill is 47km 

with 37 users. 

The hamlets of Torrington, 

Wimborne, Huxley and 

Swalwell water systems 

have been operated by KC 

for a long time. Wimborne 

and Huxley remain as well 

water systems and Torring-

ton and Swalwell are 

hooked up to the County 

pipelines. There are current-

ly 229 users within these 

hamlets. Original cost of 

water was $3.00m3, current 

cost is $3.50. 

Engineering and Contractors: 

GAMBLE WSA ï 2008 

Engineering - EXH Engineering 

Distribution Line ï TA Excavating 

Reservoir ï Tekton 
 

GRAINGER/HESKETH WSA ï 2009 

Engineering - EXH Engineering 

Distribution Line ï Chinook Pipeline 

Reservoir ï Trevcon 
 

SELKIRK WSA ï 2010 

Engineering - Genivar 

Distribution Line ï Chinook Pipeline 

Reservoir ï CDM Mechanical 
 

KIRKPATRICK/DUNPHY WSA ï 2010 

Engineering ï MPE Engineering 

Distribution Line ï Nu Edge Construction 

Reservoir ï Triteck 
 

SUNNYSLOPE WSA ï 2011 (included the 

original Linden North WSA) 

Engineering - Genivar 

Distribution Line ï Chinook Pipeline 

Reservoir ï Nu Edge Construction bonded 

with T&T Consultants doing the work 

All water service areas are named after 
the old school districts. 

 

The Blerriot Ferry, pictured left, was built by Andre Bleriot, commis-

sioned in 1913 and, in addition to providing an essential transport   

service, acted as a major social hub in the Drumheller Valley.  

The Bleriot Ferry only runs seasonally and is closed during the winter 

hours. It is a perfect detour that connects the roads that access the 

Horsethief Canyon and Orkney View Point. 

The Sunnyslope Sandstone Shelter was built early in the first decade of the twentieth century.  

The structure consists of a small chamber with sandstone masonry walls and a barrel-vaulted, 

sandstone masonry ceiling beneath an earthen, grass covered mound. Dugout shelters were a 

common form of shelter in the earliest stages of Albertaôs settlement. They required some form 

of shelter from the elements immediately after arriving at their homesteads. It is not known who 

constructed this sand shelter; it was likely built by homesteaders who migrated from the  

American Midwest to the Central Alberta region between 1900 and 1905.  One of these  

homesteaderôs, George Schech, used the structure as a temporary residence until he completed 

a frame house on the same quarter-section, after which he used the dugout as a root cellar.  
но 



 

 

Water Services and Systems 
Equity Line - In 1994, Kneehill 

County began its foray into water 

services to its residences with the 

construction of the Equity water line 

as a co-op and partnering with Three 

Hills. This water line pulled water 

from the Three Hills reservoir and 

services 42 properties to the North of 

Three Hills. 

Aqua 7 Line - Kneehill Regional  

Water Services Commission was cre-

ated in 1998 with members, Kneehill 

County, Acme, Carbon, Linden & 

Beiseker with MD of Rocky View 

and Irricana coming on board later. In 

2011 KRWSC changed its name to 

the Aqua 7 Regional Services  

Commission. 

Vision for this line is to provide pota-

ble water first for household use and 

second for ag use. 

Original Cost - 36.4 million (province 

at 40%, fed at 40% municipal at 

20%). It was a unique project as it is 

a combination of rural and urban. 

In 2000 the Town of Drumheller be-

came the supplier of water. In 2002, 

the project received provincial fund-

ing under the Rural Green ICAP. In 

2004 tenders were awarded for the 

Drumheller Supply Line 

($2,489,701), the Reservoir 

($3,882,200), the Transmission Line 

from Kirkpatrick to Acme 

($14,819,444), and the Reservoir 

Supply Line ($2,663,983).  

The 2005 first water rate for this line 

was  $2.45m3, and in 2019 the rate is 

$3.17m3. 

Kneehill County Water Servicing 

Strategy - was developed in 2003 

with the mission: ñPublicly owned 

utility with a mandate to provide a 

safe, assured and cost effective water 

supply system for as many residents 

as possible, for now and the futureò 

Five service areas were identified: 

¶ Kirkpatrick area 

¶ North East (Swalwell East to Red 

Deer River, North of Kneehills 

Creek) 

¶ South East (East of RR250 to 

RR220, South of Kneehills Creek 

to HWY 9) 

¶ Acme area 

¶ Linden area North to HWY 27 

The Kirkpatrick WSA is the smallest 

with only 8.5km of pipe servicing 

just 18 users. 

Kirkpartrick/Dunphy WSA was com-

pleted in 2010 by MPE Engineering. 

A line was also bore under the Red 

Deer river at the same time to service 

Starland County (this was fully fund-

ed by them, they just tacked onto our 

project for a better project cost). 

Linden North initial phase was com-

pleted in 2006 with 105 initial ser-

vices. The second phase was in 2011 

with a total of 298km of pipeline 

which serviced an additional 195 

properties and 19 subsequent installa-

tions have hooked up between 2006 

and current. There are currently with 

133 users. 

In 2008 the Gamble service was in-

stalled with 147km of pipeline and 

servicing to 118 residential properties 

with 8 additional properties added. 

Current users number 75. 
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County Council Terms in Office 1944 - present 

Council Chambers in Administration Building built in 2016 on 

border of Town of Three Hills. 

Council Divisional Electoral Map 2017.  

The Countyôs electoral divisions were amended  

in 1998 through Bylaw 1384.  
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First Council Organizational Meeting: March 7, 44 

Huxley Post Office October 1, 1907 
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In 1947,  a total of 41,344 yards of gravel was purchased 

from area farmers, ranging in price from .05 to .10 cents, 

costing the MD a total of $2,136.50 (+$85 in damages) 

for gravel that year.  

Total allocation to public works in 1944 was 87,000.  

$20,000 was general expenditures.  $8,000 was allotted 

per division with the exception of Div. 2 & Div. 6 which 

were allotted $8500. 

An average of 125,000 tonne of gravel is applied  

annually to our gravel roads.  

In 1958, the MD Council decided to buy two motor 

scrapers with rubber tires; a huge, progressive decision. 

In 1960 and 1961, the MD purchased another two and 

built the road between Acme and Linden at a cost of 

$100,000.   

Gravelling in Kneehill was first done in the late 30ôs and 

early 40ôs, and 1964 we saw the first hard surface road. 

Between 1970 and 1990 the MD road crews 

and contractors built 585 miles of roadways.  

In 2019, Kneehill County has 3,034 kms  

of local roads:  

34 km of paved roads 

52 km of seal coat roads 

1886 km of gravel roads 

529 km of dirt trail roads 

533 km of unopened roadways 

In 2019, Kneehill County uses 5 gravel trucks 

to achieve over 400 miles of re-gravelling 

every year There are currently 9 stockpile  

locations throughout the County as we continue to look 

for our own source of gravel. Roads are assessed every 3 

years and re gravelled based on need. We currently have 

10 divisional graders that cover 120 miles each, and two 

roamer graders that work our dust control program. 

Due to grader purchase costs increasing, grader replace-

ment occurs every 7 years, instead of every 5, reducing 

grader costs to an average of $122/hr, with an operator.  

Bridges - 214 bridge structures and culverts throughout 

the municipality. Most of these structures were built in 

the 1950ôs with an estimated life span between 50 and 60 

years.  A single span bridge replacement in 2017, now 

costs approximately $700,000.  

Council continues to value roads high in our budget and 

planning process. Our latest 20 year road study was  

completed in 2014.  

New processes have been developed that has taken some 

sting out of the costs of repairing and maintaining our 

road system. Over the past 35 years, it has cost the  

County $8,571/km per year to complete a rebuild of a 

road. Although rebuilds are still necessary in some situa-

tions, our operations crew has found much success in our 

Shoulder Pull Program, at a cost of $1,100/km over the 

last 10 years.  

During a shoulder pull, the gravel is pulled from the 

ditches back onto the road, and is re-crowned to ensure 

proper drainage. Culverts are either replaced or cleaned 

out and slopes are re-surfaced. The program builds the 

integrity and structure. 

The demands of operations continue to grow. We build, 

maintain, and assess roads on a regular basis. We have 

crews for snow plowing, removal of ditch brush, dust 

control, slide and washout repairs, culvert installations 

and shoulder pulls. Working under provincial standards 

in many projects requires engineering, and many regula-

tions drive what we can and canôt do, and with seasonal 

time limits. We currently have 34 full time permanent 

staff and 8 seasonal staff.. 

The St. Ann Ranch Trading Co. was founded in 1905 by a group of 

aristocratic French cavalrymen. Trochuôs enthusiastic reports soon 

attracted other French settlers. Eventually the pioneer town of Tro-

chu was born.  In 1911, the Grand Trunk Pacific Railway surveyed 

a line to the east of this town site, and like so many other Alberta 

communities, the town of Trochu was moved to suit the railroad. 

Snow plowing 1951 

Ehrman Gravel Pit 1951 
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St. Ann Ranch Trading Co.  


